
 

Page 1 of 4 

  City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
  
 APPOINTMENTS 
 

10769 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Eric McAvene to the 
position of Gardner Police Chief, for term expiring September 7, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10770 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Frances LeMieux to the 

position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10771 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paulette Burns to the 

position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 4 

10772 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kristina Singer to the 
position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10773 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kathleen Deal to the 

position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring August 30, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
10774 – A Measure Authorizing Acceptance of Donations and Gifts for Use by 

Gardner Police K-9 Department. (Finance Committee) 
 

10775 – A Measure Authorizing Acceptance of Donations and Gifts for Use by 
Gardner Animal Control Shelter. (Finance Committee) 

 
10776 – A Measure to Create a Veterans Services Gift Account for Acceptance of 

Donations and Gift Use. (Finance Committee) 
 

10777 – A Measure Declaring Surplus for the Purpose of Disposal of Land and 
Buildings at 75 E Broadway – Prospect Street School. (Finance Committee)
  

10778 – A Measure Declaring Surplus for Purpose of Disposal of Land and Buildings 
at 53 School Street – School Street School. (Finance Committee) 

 
10779 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Fire Department Operations 

Audit. (Finance Committee) 
 

10780 – A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the City Centennial Celebration Ad 
Hoc Advisory Committee. 

 
 10781 – An Act Relative to Establish a Special Act Charter Drafting Committee. 
 

10782 – A Measure Authorizing an Increase in Allowable Funding Limit for Council 
on Aging Revolving Fund. (Finance Committee) 

 
ORDERS 
 
10783 – An Order Authorizing $546.10 Payment of Prior Year Operating Expenditure. 

(Finance Committee) 
 

IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.  
  

10784 – An Application by Gardner Ten Pins, Inc., located at 560 W Broadway, 
for a Bowling Alley License. (Safety Committee)  

 



 

Page 3 of 4 

10785 – An Application by Gardner Thrift Store, for a License to deal in Second-
hand Articles at 280 Central Street. (Safety Committee) 

 
10786 – A Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law 

Complaint – OML 2022 – #145. 
 
10787 – A Ruling from the Attorney General relative to an Open Meeting Law 

Complaint – OML 2022 – #146. 
 
X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
  

APPOINTMENTS 
 
10735 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lorin Walter to the 

position of permanent Police Sergeant. (In the City Council and Referred to 
Appointments Committee 7/5/2022; More Time 8/1/2022) 

 
10761 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nancy Binder to the 

position of Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee; In the City Council and Referred to Appointments 
Committee 8/1/2022) 

 
10762 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Edward Vipond to the 

position of Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee; In the City Council and Referred to Appointments 
Committee 8/1/2022) 

 
10763 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Donna Russo to the 

position of Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee; In the City Council and Referred to Appointments 
Committee 8/1/2022) 

 
10764 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Anne Hurst to the 

position of Disability Commission Member, for term expiring July 25, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee; In the City Council and Referred to Appointments 
Committee 8/1/2022) 

 
 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMITTEE 
 

 10740 – A Petition by National Grid and Verizon New England, Inc., Keyes Road – 
To relocate 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Keyes Road beginning at a point 
approximately 700 feet southeast of the centerline of the intersection of West 
Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the street to accommodate for bridge 
construction and upgrade to a 45 foot class 2. (In the City Council and Referred 
to Public Service Committee 7/5/2022; Public Hearing 8/1/2022; More Time 
8/1/2022) 

 



 

Page 4 of 4 

 
XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

10737 – An Ordinance to Amend Code of the City of Gardner, Section 44-171, 
Entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays.” (In the City Council and 
Referred to Finance Committee 7/5/2022; Ordered to First Printing 8/1/2022; 
First Printing on 8/9/2022) 

 
  
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 



10769



10770



10771



10772



10773



10774



10774



10774



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10775



10776



10776



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10777



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10778



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10779



10780



10781



10781



10782



10782



10782



10783



10783



10783



10783



10783



10784



10785

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXX



10785



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

ONE ASHBURTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 

 TEL: (617) 727-2200 
 www.mass.gov/ago 
 
 

August 1, 2022 
 

       OML 2022 – 145 
 
 
VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 
President, Gardner City Council  
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov  
 
 
 RE: Open Meeting Law Complaint 
 
Dear President Kazinskas: 
 

This office received two complaints from Scott Graves1 alleging that the Gardner City 
Council (the “Council”) violated the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25. The first 
complaint was filed with the Council on or about September 1, and, after an extension of time 
granted by our office, you responded on behalf of the Council by letter on September 29.2 The 
second complaint was filed with the Council on or about October 18, and you responded on 
behalf of the Council by letter on November 5.  

 
We understand the September 1 complaint to allege that 1) the Council met in executive 

session on August 2 for an improper purpose; and 2) the Chair’s announcement before entering 
executive session on August 2 was insufficient. We understand the October 18 complaint to 
allege that the Council 1) failed to meet to review the September 1 complaint and delegate 
authority to respond before responding to the complaint; and 2) deliberated outside of a meeting 
when a proposed response to the September 1 complaint was emailed to the full Council.3  
 

We appreciate the parties’ patience while we reviewed these matters. Following our 
review, we find that the Council violated the Open Meeting Law by improperly deliberating via 
email. We find that the Council did not otherwise violate the Open Meeting Law as alleged. In 

 
1 At the time the complaints were filed with the Council, Mr. Graves was a member of the Council.  
2 All dates are in 2021 unless otherwise stated. 
3 The Complainant raises additional allegations and issues that, even if true, would not constitute violations of the 
Open Meeting Law. Because the Division of Open Government’s statutory authority concerns compliance only with 
the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25, we decline to review these additional allegations.  

10786



2 
 

reaching this determination, we reviewed the Open Meeting Law complaints; the Council’s 
responses; and the requests for further review. We also reviewed the notices and meeting packets 
for Council meetings held on August 2, September 7, and September 20, as well as video 
recordings of those same meetings. Additionally, we reviewed the September 16 email 
circulating the meeting packet for the Council’s September 20 meeting.4 Finally, we 
communicated a few times with Council President.5 
 

FACTS 
 
We find the facts to be as follows. The Council is an eleven-member public body; 

therefore, six members constitute a quorum. In July of 2021, the Complainant, in his capacity as 
a City Councilor, filed a lawsuit in Worcester Superior Court naming John Flick, in his capacity 
as City Solicitor for the City of Gardner, and the Commonwealth’s Supervisor of Records as 
defendants.6 The lawsuit pertains to the City’s refusal to provide records that the Complainant 
requested as part of a public records request, and the Supervisor of Record’s determination that 
the records did not have to be produced. The September 1 complaint relates to an executive 
session held on August 2 during which the Council discussed the Complainant’s lawsuit.  
 
The August 2 Meeting  
 

At some point prior to August 2, the Mayor requested that the Council appropriate funds 
to hire outside counsel to defend against the Complainant’s lawsuit. The Mayor asked that the 
Council meet in executive session to discuss this funding request and related litigation matter. 
The Council posted notice for a meeting to be held on August 2 at 7:30 p.m. Included on the 
notice was the topic  
 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Entered under Exemption 3 of the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law: “To discuss 
strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open meeting may 
have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body 
and the chair so declares.” M.G.L. c.30A, §21(a)(3) 
o For the purpose of discussing S. Graves et al. v. City of Gardner et al. 

 
During the August 2 meeting, when the Council reached the executive session 

topic, Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas, acting as chair, called on Councilor 
Aleksander Dernalowicz who made a motion to “move into executive session.” The 
motion was seconded by Councilor George Tyros. Thereafter President Kazinskas stated 
that the executive session would be held under “exemption 3 of the Massachusetts Open 
Meeting Law” stating that this allows a public body to enter executive session to “discuss 
strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open meeting may have a 
detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigation position of the public body and the chair 
so declares.” President Kazinskas then explained that the specific purpose for the 

 
4 Video recordings of the Council’s meetings may be found at https://www.gardner-ma.gov/637/3619/Video-On-
Demand. 
5 For the sake of clarity, we refer to you in the third person. 
6 Graves v. Flick, Mass. Sup. Ct., No. 2185CV00791 (Worcester County, July 16, 2021). 

10786



3 
 

executive session that evening was “to discuss S. Graves versus City of Gardner and 
other parties filed in the Massachusetts Superior Court.” Thereafter, President Kazinskas 
stated that “as required by Chapter 30A of the General Laws, I declare that discussing 
these matters in open session would not be appropriate as the discussion involves an item 
in active litigation against the City.” President Kazinskas then asked if there was any 
discussion regarding the motion to enter executive session. There was none. The Council 
then voted by roll call to enter executive session. Finally, President Kazinskas announced 
that the Council would reconvene in open session.  

 
The minutes of the August 2 executive session have not been released to the 

public yet, and we therefore do not recount their content in detail here. However, we note 
that the Council was provided with background information regarding the Complainant’s 
lawsuit. The Council also discussed conflicts of interest within the City’s law department 
with respect to the Complainant’s lawsuit and the request to hire outside counsel, 
including the cost of hiring outside counsel and the request to appropriate funds.  

 
After adjourning executive session, the Council reconvened in open session and 

voted to transfer “$15,000.00[] from [the] Mayor’s Unclassified Termination Leave 
Account to [the] Mayor’s Unclassified S. Graves versus City Et Al Lawsuit Account.” 
 
The Response to the September 1 Open Meeting Law Complaint  
 

The Council posted notice for a meeting to be held on September 7 at 7:30 p.m. 
Included on the notice was the topic “An Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by 
Councillor Scott Joseph Graves.” During the September 7 meeting, the Council 
determined that it needed additional time to respond to the September 1 complaint and 
voted to refer the matter to the law department to request an extension of time from our 
office.   

 
At some point between the September 7 meeting and September 16, President 

Kazinskas drafted a proposed response to the September 1 complaint. President 
Kazinskas submitted the proposed response to the City Clerk for inclusion in the meeting 
packet for the Council’s upcoming September 20 meeting. On September 16 the meeting 
packet was posted online. That same day the City Clerk emailed a link to the meeting 
packet to the full Council. Included on page 418 of the meeting packet was President 
Kazinskas’ proposed response to the September 1 Open Meeting Law complaint.  
 

The Council posted notice for a meeting to be held on September 20 at 7:30 p.m. 
Included on the notice was the topic “An Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by 
Councillor Scott Joseph Graves (In the City Council and Referred to Law Department to 
request an extension 9/7/2021).” During the September 20 meeting, President Kazinskas 
introduced the Open Meeting Law complaint topic and then recognized Councilor Tyros. 
Councilor Tyros moved “to approve the proposed response.” The motion was seconded 
by Councilor Dernalowicz. President Kazinskas then asked for discussion on the motion. 
The Complainant announced that he would abstain. Thereafter, Councilor James Boone 
spoke regarding the Complainant’s Superior Court lawsuit. There was no further 

10786



4 
 

discussion and the Council voted in favor of the motion to approve the proposed 
response. Thereafter, on September 29, the Council sent its response to the Complainant, 
copying our office.  
  

DISCUSSION 
 

I. The Council Met in Executive Session on August 2 for a Proper Purpose and the 
Announcement Before Entering Executive Session Was Sufficient. 

 
Executive Session Purpose 3 
 

The Open Meeting Law requires that all meetings of a public body be conducted in an 
open session, with some exceptions allowing a public body to convene behind closed doors in 
executive session. G.L. c. 30A, §§ 20(a), 21(a). One permissible reason to convene in executive 
session is “to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an open 
meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body 
and the chair so declares.” G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3) (“Purpose 3”). The public body invoking 
Purpose 3 must have a bargaining or litigating position to protect and must declare in open 
session that having the discussion in open session may have a detrimental effect on that position. 
See G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3); OML 2011-47.7 Under Purpose 3, a public body has a litigating 
position to protect if there is pending litigation in which the public body has a litigating position, 
or if litigation is clearly and imminently threatened or otherwise demonstrably likely. See OML 
2020-53.  

The Complainant alleges that the Council did not have a litigating position with respect to 
his lawsuit because the City, not the City Council, was a party to the lawsuit. Although we 
recognize that the Complainant’s lawsuit raises some peculiarities with respect to the Council’s 
role in the litigation, we have found that public bodies responsible for appropriating funds that do 
not otherwise have a litigating position may meet in executive session to consider appropriation 
of litigation expenses. See OML 2011-47, citing Filippone v. Mayor of Newton, 392 Mass. 633, 
625 (1984) (holding that a finance committee could enter executive to consider appropriation of 
litigation expenses where the mayor was the named party). We find that the Council properly 
met in executive session under Purpose 3.    
 
The Announcement Before Entering Executive Session 
 

The Open Meeting Law requires that before entering executive session the chair must 
“state the purpose for the executive session, stating all subjects that may be revealed without 
compromising the purpose for which the executive session was called [and] . . . shall publicly 
announce whether the open session will reconvene at the conclusion of the executive session.” 
G.L. c. 30 A, § 21(b)(3), (4). As noted above, the Law requires that additional statements be 
made by the chair before entering executive session for specific purposes, such as Purpose 3 
which requires the chair to declare that “an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the 
bargaining or litigating position of the public body.” G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3). 

 
7 Open Meeting Law determinations may be found at the Attorney General’s website, 
www.mass.gov/ago/openmeeting. 

10786



5 
 

  
 The complaint alleges that President Kazinskas’ announcement before entering executive 
session was insufficient, in part because she did not state that holding the discussion in open 
session may have a detrimental effect on the Council’s litigating position. Although the Open 
Meeting Law requires that, before entering executive session under Purpose 3, the chair declare 
that holding the discussion in “an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining 
or litigating position of the public body,” G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3), the Law does not mandate that 
the chair recite the exact language of the statute. See OML 2020-108. Here, when reviewed in its 
entirety, we find President Kazinskas’ announcement sufficient to comply with the Law where 
she read aloud the Purpose 3 statutory language, identified the specific litigation matter to be 
discussed, and then stated “as required by Chapter 30A of the General Laws, I declare that 
discussing these matters in open session would not be appropriate as the discussion involves an 
item in active litigation against the City.”   
 

II. The Council Met to Review the September 1 Open Meeting Law Complaint Prior to 
Responding to the Complaint; However, the Council Improperly Deliberated When a 
Proposed Response Was Circulated to the Full Council Via Email. 

 
Unless an extension of time has been granted by this office, within 14 business days of 

receipt of a complaint, the public body must meet to review the complaint’s allegations; take 
remedial action, if appropriate; send to the complainant a response and a description of any 
remedial action taken; and send to the Attorney General a copy of the complaint and a 
description of any remedial action taken. G.L. c. 30A, § 23(b); 940 CMR 29.05(5). The public 
body may review a complaint during a meeting and refer the complaint to an individual to 
respond, or an individual may draft a response to the complaint in advance of a meeting for the 
public body to approve during a meeting, but the public body may not remove itself entirely 
from the process. See OML 2020-164; OML 2017-197. The Open Meeting Law does not require 
a public body to engage in a substantive discussion of the merits of the complaint. See OML 
2020-38; OML 2018-134; OML 2017-148 (“That the Board may have chosen to refer the 
complaint rather than discuss its substance is the Board’s prerogative.”).  

 
As discussed in the previous section, meetings of a public body must be open to members 

of the public unless an executive session is convened. G.L. c. 30A, §§ 20(a), 21. Additionally, 
meetings of a public body must be properly noticed. G.L. c. 30A, §§ 20(b). A “meeting” is 
defined, in relevant part, as “a deliberation by a public body with respect to any matter within the 
body’s jurisdiction.” G.L. c. 30A, § 18. The Law defines “deliberation” as “an oral or written 
communication through any medium, including electronic mail, between or among a quorum of 
a public body on any public business within its jurisdiction; provided, however, that 
‘deliberation’ shall not include the distribution of other procedural meeting [sic] or the 
distribution of reports or documents that may be discussed at a meeting, provided that no opinion 
of a member is expressed.” Id. Email attachments are considered along with the body of an email 
when determining whether a public body member has expressed an opinion. See OML 2019-75; 
OML 2014-152; Boelter v. Bd. of Selectmen of Wayland, 479 Mass. 233, 239-43 (2018). A one-
way communication from one public body member to a quorum on business within a body’s 
jurisdiction is deliberation, even if no other members respond. See OML 2020-136; OML 2019-

10786



6 
 

144. For purposes of the Open Meeting Law, a “quorum” is a simple majority of the members of 
a public body. G.L. c. 30A, § 18. 
 
 To begin, we find that the Council met to review the September 1 Open Meeting Law 
complaint prior to formally responding to the complaint. The Council met on September 20, 
voted to approve President Kazinskas’ proposed response, and on September 29 formally sent 
the response to the Complainant, copying our office. That the Council did not discuss the 
complaint in depth did not violate the Open Meeting Law. See OML 2020-38; OML 2018-134; 
OML 2017-148.   
 
 Next, although we find that the Council did not violate the Open Meeting Law with 
respect to the procedures for responding to an Open Meeting Law complaint, we find that the 
Council improperly deliberated regarding its response to the September 1 complaint when the 
proposed response was circulated to the full Council via email as part of the meeting packet for 
the Council’s September 20 meeting. The proposed response was drafted by President Kazinskas 
and therefore necessarily contained her opinions, as such the distribution of the proposed 
response did not fall within the exception to the definition of “deliberation” for the distribution 
of reports or documents that may be discussed at a meeting. G.L. c. 30A, § 18. Although it is 
clear that certain administrative tasks are excluded from the definition of “deliberation,” that 
exception includes a strong caveat: such administrative communications are permissible 
“provided that no opinion of a member is expressed.” G.L. c. 30A, § 18; OML 2013-5.8  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8 The Supreme Judicial Court suggested in dicta that a public body may avoid violating the Open Meeting Law if, 
when circulating documents that contain public body members’ opinions outside of an open meeting, the public 
body contemporaneously provides the documents to the public by, for example, posting the documents on a website. 
Boelter, 479 Mass. 233, 243-44 (2018). Those facts were not before the Court, and furthermore, the unambiguous 
language of the statute clearly prohibits distribution among a quorum of a public body of reports or document that 
may be discussed at a meeting if those reports or documents express the opinions of a public body member. See G.L. 
c. 30A, § 18 (“‘deliberation’ shall not include the distribution of a meeting agenda, scheduling information or 
distribution of other procedural meeting or the distribution of reports or documents that may be discussed at a 
meeting, provided that no opinion of a member is expressed.”) (emphasis added). 

10786



7 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

For the reasons stated above, we find that the Council violated the Open Meeting Law by 
improperly deliberating via email. We find that the Council did not otherwise violate the Open 
Meeting Law as alleged. We order the Council’s immediate and future compliance with the 
Open Meeting Law, and caution that a future similar violation may be considered evidence of an 
intentional violation of the Law. Because the proposed response was previously released to the 
public on September 16 when the September 20 meeting packet was posted online, we order no 
further remedial action.  

 
We now consider the complaints addressed by this determination to be resolved. This 

determination does not address any other complaints that may be pending with the Council or 
with our office. Please feel free to contact our office at (617) 963-2540 if you have any questions 
regarding this letter.    

 
 
Sincerely, 

 

        
       Elizabeth Carnes Flynn 

Assistant Attorney General 
Division of Open Government 
 
 

cc: Scott Graves (via email: sgraveslawoffice37@gmail.com) 
John M. Flick, Esq., City of Gardner Law Department (via email: 
jflick@flicklawgroup.com) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This determination was issued pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(c).  A public body or any 
member of a body aggrieved by a final order of the Attorney General may obtain judicial 

review through an action filed in Superior Court pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(d).  The 
complaint must be filed in Superior Court within twenty-one days of receipt of a final 

order. 

10786



10786



10786



10786



10786



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

ONE ASHBURTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 

 TEL: (617) 727-2200 
 www.mass.gov/ago 
 
 

August 1, 2022 
 

       OML 2022 – 146 
 
 
VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 
President, Gardner City Council  
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov  
 
 
 RE: Open Meeting Law Complaint 
 
Dear President Kazinskas: 
 

This office received a complaint from Scott Graves alleging that the Gardner City 
Council (the “Council”) violated the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25. The complaint 
was filed with the Council on or about January 28, 2022, and you responded on behalf of the 
Council by letter dated February 7, 2022. The complaint alleges that 1) Council President 
Elizabeth Kazinskas1 deliberated via email on December 30, 2021; and 2) the Council failed to 
create and approve minutes for its executive session held on August 2, 2021.2,3  
 

We appreciate the parties’ patience while we reviewed this matter. Following our review, 
we find that the Council violated the Open Meeting Law as alleged. In reaching this 
determination, we reviewed the Open Meeting Law complaint; the Council’s response; and the 
request for further review. We also reviewed a video recording of the Council’s January 3, 2022, 
meeting and the meeting packet for that same meeting.4 Finally, we communicated with the 
Council President. 
 
 

 
1 For the sake of clarity, we refer to you in the third person. 
2 The propriety of the August 2, 2021, executive session is the subject of another Open Meeting Law complaint filed 
by the Complainant and is addressed in a separate determination.  
3 We decline to review additional allegations that were not raised in the original complaint filed with the Council. 
See OML Declination 4-22-15; OML Decimation 8-25-2015; OML 2022-129, n. 2. 
4 Video recordings of the Council’s meetings may be found at https://www.gardner-ma.gov/637/3619/Video-On-
Demand. 

10787



2 
 

FACTS 
 
We find the facts to be as follows. The Council is an eleven-member public body; 

therefore, six members constitute a quorum. On August 2, 2021, the Council convened in 
executive session under G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3) to discuss a litigation matter. The Council 
approved the minutes for the August 2, 2021, executive session on April 19, 2022. The April 19, 
2022, meeting was the Council’s seventeenth meeting following the August 2, 2021, meeting.  

 
On December 30, President Kazinskas sent the City Clerk an email entitled “Agenda Item 

– Committee Appointments” and asked that the Clerk forward the email to the full Council. That 
same day, the Clerk forwarded President Kazinskas’s email to the full Council. The email stated 
as follows: 

 
Dear Councillors, 

 
I hope you are well and have enjoyed the holidays. I am writing to you regarding 
an item that I have proposed on the agenda for this Monday’s City Council meeting. 
I received a letter from Mayor Nicholson regarding the approximately 300 
appointments that will expire over the next two years. My proposal is to add the 
Committee on Appointments to oversee appointments, as the fifth Standing 
Committee of the City Council. As you know, the Finance Committee currently 
oversees appointments, along with a number of other areas. In anticipation of the 
large number of upcoming appointments over the next term, I thought it would be 
wise for the next City Council to consider adding another Standing Committee to 
oversee appointments. Mayor Nicholson’s letter, along with this email, will be 
included in the City Council meeting packet information regarding this proposed 
item.  
 
The notice for the Council’s January 3, 2022, meeting include the topic “A Measure 

Amending the Rules of the City Council to Establish a Standing Committee on Appointments.” 
During the January 3, 2022, meeting, President Kazinskas announced the topic and then 
recognized Councilor Nathan Boudreau who moved to adopt the amendment to the Council 
Rules and create a standing committee on appointments. The motion was seconded, and 
President Kazinskas called for discussion. Councilor Judy Mack spoke commending the Mayor 
and President Kazinskas for recommending the establishment of a committee to oversee 
appointments and stating that she supported forming such a committee. Councilor Craig Cormier 
then spoke regarding the makeup of the new appointments committee. Thereafter, the Council 
voted in favor of creating an appointments committee.    
 

  

10787



3 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

I. The Council Failed to Timely Approve Minutes for Its August 2 Executive Session 
Meeting.  

 
The Open Meeting Law requires public bodies to create and approve meeting minutes, 

whether for open or executive session, in a timely manner. G.L. c. 30A, § 22(c). “Timely 
manner” means “within the next three public body meetings or within 30 days, whichever is 
later, unless the public body can show good cause for further delay.” 940 CMR 29.11; see OML 
2018-48. Whenever possible, we recommend that minutes of a meeting be approved at the next 
meeting. See OML 2018-67; OML 2017-133. Approval of executive session minutes is a 
separate and unrelated obligation from the requirement that executive session minutes be 
periodically reviewed to determine whether they should be released to the public. See OML 
2019-115. This initial approval of executive session minutes is to approve the minutes as an 
accurate record of what occurred at a particular executive session and does not mean that the 
minutes are approved for release to the public. 

 
The complaint alleges that the Council failed to create minutes for its executive session 

held on August 2, 2021. The Council responded to the complaint explaining that the minutes had 
not yet been released to the public. In response to questions from our office, the Council has 
explained that it approved the minutes for the August 2, 2021, executive session in the first 
instance on April 19, 2022, and that the minutes have not yet been approved for release to the 
public. Because the Council did not approve the minutes of its August 2, 2021, meeting until 
April 19, 2022, its seventeenth meeting and 260 days after the August 2 meeting, we find that the 
Council violated the Open Meeting Law by failing to timely approve meeting minutes.   

 
II. The Council President Improperly Deliberated Via Email on December 30, 2021, and 

This Violation Was Not Cured. 
 
The Open Meeting Law requires that meetings of a public body be properly noticed and 

that they be open to members of the public unless an executive session is convened. See G.L. c. 
30A, §§ 20(a)-(b), 21. A “meeting” is defined, in relevant part, as “a deliberation by a public 
body with respect to any matter within the body’s jurisdiction.” G.L. c. 30A, § 18. The Law 
defines “deliberation” as “an oral or written communication through any medium, including 
electronic mail, between or among a quorum of a public body on any public business within its 
jurisdiction; provided, however, that ‘deliberation’ shall not include the distribution of other 
procedural meeting [sic] or the distribution of reports or documents that may be discussed at a 
meeting, provided that no opinion of a member is expressed.” Id. A one-way communication 
from one public body member to a quorum on business within a body’s jurisdiction is 
deliberation, even if no other members respond. See OML 2020-136; OML 2019-144. A public 
body may not use a non-member, such as the secretary, to facilitate a deliberation or 
communication on matters that the public body would otherwise be required to save for 
discussion at an open meeting. See OML 2020-144; OML 2017-69; OML 2016-48; see also Dist. 
Atty for the Northern Dist. v. Sch. Comm. of Wayland, 451 Mass. 561, 570-571 (2009) 
(“Governmental bodies may not circumvent the requirements of the open meeting law by 

10787



4 
 

conducting deliberations via private messages, whether electronically, in person, over the 
telephone, or in any other form.”). 
 

We find, and the Council does not dispute, that President Kazinskas violated the Open 
meeting Law by causing her December 30, 2021, email to be sent to the full Council and thus 
deliberating outside of a properly noticed meeting. Although the Council does not directly 
dispute that a violation occurred, it asserts that any violation was cured because President 
Kazinskas’ email was included in the meeting packet for the Council’s January 3, 2022, 
meeting—which is publicly posted online—and because the Council discussed the subject of the 
December 30, 2021, email during the January 3, 2022, meeting.  

 
Violations of the Open Meeting Law may be cured by independent, deliberative action 

that is not merely a ceremonial acceptance and perfunctory ratification of action taken in 
violation of the Law. See Pearson v. Bd. of Selectmen of Longmeadow, 49 Mass. App. Ct. 119, 
125 (2000); OML 2020-7; OML 2016-49. Generally, that means conducting deliberations anew 
at a subsequent meeting that is accessible to the public and for which proper notice is provided. 
For example, we found that a board of health cured a similar violation to the one found here 
when the Chair read the two memoranda that constituted improper deliberation aloud at an open 
meeting after having included this topic on a properly posted notice. OML 2021-130.  

 
Here, we find that the actions taken by the Council are insufficient to cure the violation 

where the December 30, 2021, email was simply included in the meeting packet for the 
Council’s January 3, 2022, meeting and was not otherwise acknowledged or discussed during an 
open meeting. We take this opportunity to clarify for the Council that simply including 
deliberative emails in a meeting packet does not negate the fact that such emails violate the Open 
Meeting Law. The substance of the December 30, 2021, email is precisely the kind of 
communication that the Open Meeting Law requires be conducted in an open meeting for which 
proper notice has been given.   

  

10787



5 
 

 
CONCLUSION 

 
For the reasons stated above, we find that the Council violated the Open Meeting Law by 

failing to timely approve executive session minutes. Additionally, we find that the Council 
President violated the Open Meeting Law by deliberating via email on December 30, 2021. We 
order the Council’s immediate and future compliance with the Open Meeting Law, and caution 
that a future similar violation may be considered evidence of an intentional violation of the Law. 
Additionally, we order each member of the Council to attend a comprehensive Open Meeting 
Law training, either by participating in one of the Division of Open Government’s monthly 
webinar trainings or by attending a training presented by the Council’s legal counsel. Each 
member of the Council shall certify to our office that they have done so within ninety (90) days 
of receipt of this letter. 
 

We now consider the complaint addressed by this determination to be resolved. This 
determination does not address any other complaints that may be pending with the Council or 
with our office. Please feel free to contact our office at (617) 963-2540 if you have any questions 
regarding this letter.    

 
Sincerely, 

        
       Elizabeth Carnes Flynn 

Assistant Attorney General 
Division of Open Government 
 
 

cc: Scott Graves (via email: sgraveslawoffice37@gmail.com) 
John M. Flick, Esq., City of Gardner Law Department (via email: 
jflick@flicklawgroup.com) 

 
  
 

This determination was issued pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(c).  A public body or any 
member of a body aggrieved by a final order of the Attorney General may obtain judicial 

review through an action filed in Superior Court pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, § 23(d).  The 
complaint must be filed in Superior Court within twenty-one days of receipt of a final 

order. 

10787



10787



10787



10787



10735



10735



10761



10762



10763



10764



 
        

          CITY OF GARDNER 
          MASSACHUSETTS 01440-2630 

 
          OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
             Room 121, City Hall 
             Tel  (978) 630-4058 
             Fax (978) 630-2589 

 
                                                                                NOTICE TO ABUTTERS 
 

July 13, 2022 
 
TO ABUTTERS AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L., c. 166, §22, you are hereby notified that a 
Public Hearing will be conducted on MONDAY, AUGUST 1, 2022 at 7:30 o'clock 
P.M. in the City Council Chamber, 2nd Floor, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, 
Massachusetts, upon the petition of Massachusetts Electric Company, d/b/a 
NATIONAL GRID and Verizon New England, Inc. for permission to locate poles, 
wires, and fixtures, including the necessary sustaining and protecting fixtures, under 
along and across the following public way: 
 

KEYES ROAD – To relocate 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Keyes Road beginning 
at a point approximately 700 feet southeast of the centerline of the intersection 
of West Street. Relocate Pole #2 across the street to accommodate for bridge 
construction and upgrade to a 45-foot class 2. 
 

A sketch of the proposed pole location is attached for your edification. 
 
 
      CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 
 

 
      By:  TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk 
 
 

 

10740



ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF GARDNER 

50 Manca Drive, Gardner MA 01440 
 
 
 
 
 

Robert E. Oliva, City Engineer 
Telephone (978) 630-8195 

roliva@gardner-ma.gov 

 

PROJECT REVIEW MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Public Service Committee 

Cc:   Dane Arnold, DPW Director 
  Christine Harty, DPW Administrative Asst. 
  Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

From:  Robert Oliva – City Engineer 

Date:  July 20, 2022 

Project: National Grid Pole Petition - City Council Item #10740 

 
 
National Grid has submitted a pole petition to relocate two poles on Keyes Road.  The following 
work is proposed: 

 Pole #2 will be moved from its current location on the west side of the road to a new 
location on the east side of the road with a new guy, all within the City right of way. 

 Pole #3 will be moved from the City right of way to be located on private property at 26 
Keyes Road.  National Grid has conveyed to me that the owner of 26 Keyes Road has 
agreed to an easement with them, and the easement is in the works. 

This work is necessary to accommodate the construction of the proposed Keyes Road culvert 
replacement.  I have reviewed the petition application, inspected the proposed locations, and 
have no comment on the petition at this time. 

10740



L1

L2C1

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE
OE OE OE OE OE

DESIGNED/CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

FILE:

DATE:

APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NO:

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

M
ar

 1
1,

 2
02

2-
3:

58
pm

 B
y:

 I
C
ol

om
ba

ni
La

st
 S

av
ed

:3
/1

1/
20

22

Ti
gh

e 
&

 B
on

d:
J:

\G
\G

03
84

 G
ar

dn
er

\T
60

 -
 K

ey
es

 R
oa

d 
C
ul

ve
rt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t\
D

ra
w

in
gs

_F
ig

ur
es

\A
ut

oC
A
D

\S
he

et
\G

03
84

-T
60

_5
-9

_S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

 D
ET

A
IL

S
.d

w
g

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

G0384-T60_5-9_SITE PLAN DETAILS.dwg

MARCH 2022

G0384-060

SCALE:

SDS, RMC

XXX

XXX

SHEET      OF 23

Gardner,
Massachusetts

Keyes Road
Over Wilder
Brook

Culvert
Replacement

City of Gardner

90% DESIGN
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
MassDOT, Highway Division

MassDOT Bridge No.
G-01-025, BIN 6PK

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND
DEMOLITION PLAN

5

00 20' 40'

SCALE: 1" = 20'

1" = 20'

N

SHEET 5

10740

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN IS ACCEPTABLE TO MASSDOT FOR CONTRACTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BRIDGE ENGINEER             

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1. ALL OF THE PROPOSED WORK IN UPLANDS IS LOCATED WITHIN THE ALL OF THE PROPOSED WORK IN UPLANDS IS LOCATED WITHIN THE 100-FOOT BUFFER ZONE AND THE 200-FOOT RIVERFRONT AREA. 2. REFER TO SHEETS 12 AND 13 FOR CONSTRUCTION STAGING.REFER TO SHEETS 12 AND 13 FOR CONSTRUCTION STAGING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDER BROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMOLISH EXISTING CULVERT AND HEADWALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY COFFER DAM (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL BARRIERS (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100-FOOT BUFFER ZONE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
200-FOOT RIVERFRONT AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDER BROOK CONSTRUCTION BASELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYES ROAD CONSTRUCTION BASELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R&R UP (BO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORDERING LAND SUBJECT TO FLOODING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+00 N: 3038366.9264 E: 517772.0766

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 2+50 N: 3038366.9264 E: 517772.0766

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY RELOCATED UP (BO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY OVERHEAD UTILITIES (BO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 101+31 CULVERT HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 102+02 CULVERT HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT BEGIN R&D PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT BEGIN R&D PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAWCUT END R&D PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+55 CUT AND CAP EXIST WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 1+60 CUT AND CAP EXIST WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+55 TO STA 1+60 R&D EXIST WATER MAIN



W W W W

OE OE OE OE OE OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

OE

985

984

983 982

981

980

979

978

968968
969

969
967970

970
975

975980

975

980

970 975

L1

L2C1

"LINE-NEW""LINE-BOLD"V-ENVR-TEST-PIT (TEST PIT)V-ENVR-WELL (MONITORING WELL)V-ENVR-SOIL-SAMP (SOIL SAMPLE)V-ENVR-BORE (BORING)C-ENVR-WLMTC-TOPO-WATRC-SITE-HBLEC-PLNT-TREELINE(Mirrored)C-STRM-UNDR (TRUE SIZE)C-STRM (Storm CB Type C)C-SITE-FNCEC-CBLE-UNDR (Underground Cable TV)C-FIRE-UNDER (Fire Service)C-WATR-UNDR (Water Service)C-POWR-UNDR (Underground Electric)C-COMM-UNDR (Underground Tel-Com)C-NGAS-UNDR (Underground Gas)C-WALK-BITU (Bituminous Walk)C-ROAD-SWCTC-CURB-CONC (Concrete Curb)C-CURB-BITU (Bituminous Curb)C-ROAD-STRY (Yellow Paint Line)C-BLDG (New Building)C-BLDG-PATT (Building Hatch)C-ROAD-CNTRC-ROAD-TAKE (Taking Line)C-SITE-HC-SYMBC-PLNT-TREEC-TOPO-MINRC-TOPO-MAJRC-STRM-UD (UNDERDRAIN)C-SITE-FNC2 (Wood Post)C-POWR-OVHD (Overhead Electric)C-TOPO-MAID (Contour Tag - Automated)C-ROAD-STRW (White Paint Line)C-SITE-ARRW (Painted Arrows)C-ROAD-SIGNC-SITE-POLEC-PROPC-TOPO-SPOTC-SITE-WALLC-SSWR-UNDR (Sanitary Pipes)C-SSWR-FRCE (Force Main)C-STRM (Storm CB Type C-L)C-STRM (Storm Manhole)C-CURB-GRAN (Granite Curb)C-FIRE-HYDR (C-WATR-HYDR)C-SITE-FNC3 (Chain Link)C-WALK-CONC (Concrete Walk)C-WALK-BRCK (Brick Walk)C-WALK-PATT (Brick Walk Hatch)(Sawcut Line)(Roadway Baseline)(Property Line)C-SITE-GSWL(Grass Lined Swale)C-WALK-EXSP (Expansion Joints)C-STRM-RIPR  (Rip-Rap)C-STRM-PROF (STORM PIPES in PROFILE)C-STRM-FLES (Flared End-Section)C-STRM-HWLL (Head Wall)C-STRM-GABN (Gabion Wall)C-ROAD-EASE(Easement Line)(Right-of-Way Line)C-ROAD-ROWC-ANNO-STLN (Site Lines)30"24"18"15"12"36" PipeC-STRM-HWLLC-ROAD-GDRL (WIRE ROPE)C-ROAD-MBR (METAL BEAM RAIL)C-SITE-LITEC-WALK-HCRAMPC-STRM (Yard Drain)C-FIRE-HP-UNDR (High Pressure Fire Service)VORTECH UNIT 1KUNIT 2KUNIT 3KUNIT 4KUNIT 5KUNIT 7KUNIT 9KUNIT 11KUNIT 16KC-SITE-GSWL-ARROWC-SSWR-COMB (COMBINATION SEWER)C-SSWR-LOWP (LOW PRESSURE SANITARY SEWER)C-CHWTR-RTRN (CHILLED WATER RETURN)C-CHWTR-SPLY (CHILLED WATER SPLY)C-STEAM-CONDESATEC-STEAM-HP (HIGH PRESSURE STEAM)PROPOSED UTILITIESPROPOSED STORMBOUNDARY (CT)PROPOSED TOPOPROPOSED SITEC-SITE-STNWLLC-SSWR-FLOW (SEWER FLOW DIRECTION)48"60"72"144"C-SSWR (Sanitary Sewer Structure)48"60"72"84"TYPE 1CASCADETYPE A-1C-STRM (MA - Storm CB)C-STRM-UD (ROOF LEADER)C-WATR-POTABLE (Potable Water)18"15"12"24"30"36"Annotative Segment Label (Auto)SSSSDDDDC-ABAN-UTILC-DEMO-UTILGEOTECHC-ENVR-TEST-PIT (TEST PIT)C-ENVR-WELL (MONITORING WELL)C-ENVR-SOIL-SAMP (SOIL SAMPLE)"LINE-NEW""LINE-BOLD"C-ENVR-BORE (BORING)C-STEAM-MP (MEDIUM PRESSURE STEAM)C-STEAM-LP (LOW PRESSURE STEAM)C-POWR-PRME (Primary Electric)C-POWR-SCND (Secondary Electric)C-OXYG-UNDR (Underground Oxygen)C-COMM-DATA (Underground Tel-Data)C-HWTR-SPLY (HOT WATER SUPPLY)C-HWTR-RTRN (HOT WATER RETURN)C-ROAD-EDGE (Edge Of Pavement)C-NGASD84"96"SC-ROAD-PARK-METRC-WATREC-POWRTC-COMMGGGVGTC-STRM-UNDR-2 (SINGLE LINE)( Deciduous )( Evergreen )( Ornamental )( Shrub )C-SITE-BLRD (Proposed Bollard)UTILITY C0.POLE #32.0BOUNDARY (MASS)C-ROAD-TAKE-MA (Taking Line)C-ROAD-EASE-MA (Easement Line)C-TELE-UNDR (Underground Tel-Data)ONLYC-TANK-UST (UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK)C-PROJ-LIMT (Project Limit Line)C-SITE-USPS(mailbox)(masonrymailbox)

= '  
'  '

SWSENENWSWSENENW

DESIGNED/CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

FILE:

DATE:

APPROVED BY:

PROJECT NO:

Pl
ot

te
d 

O
n:

M
ar

 1
1,

 2
02

2-
3:

58
pm

 B
y:

 I
C
ol

om
ba

ni
La

st
 S

av
ed

:3
/1

1/
20

22

Ti
gh

e 
&

 B
on

d:
J:

\G
\G

03
84

 G
ar

dn
er

\T
60

 -
 K

ey
es

 R
oa

d 
C
ul

ve
rt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t\
D

ra
w

in
gs

_F
ig

ur
es

\A
ut

oC
A
D

\S
he

et
\G

03
84

-T
60

_5
-9

_S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

 D
ET

A
IL

S
.d

w
g

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

G0384-T60_5-9_SITE PLAN DETAILS.dwg

MARCH 2022

G0384-060

SCALE:

SDS, RMC

XXX

XXX

SHEET      OF 23

Gardner,
Massachusetts

Keyes Road
Over Wilder
Brook

Culvert
Replacement

City of Gardner

90% DESIGN
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
MassDOT, Highway Division

MassDOT Bridge No.
G-01-025, BIN 6PK

N

SITE PLAN

6

00 20' 40'

SCALE: 1" = 20'

1" = 20'

SHEET 6

10740

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Index Contours

AutoCAD SHX Text
Intermediate Contours

AutoCAD SHX Text
Property Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curb

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge Of Pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dirt Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Property Line (Adjacent)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
Traffic Paint Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Base Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building (Adjacent)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Retaining Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text
Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text
Spot Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chain Link Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Drain Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Drain Structures

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Drain Underground

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Underground Multiline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Force Main

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Structures

AutoCAD SHX Text
Taking Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easement Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Low Pressure

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fence Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood Post Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guardrail

AutoCAD SHX Text
Metal Beam Rail

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cable Television

AutoCAD SHX Text
Combination Sewer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric Structure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Electric Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Structure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Drain (Single Line, RLs etc.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Gas Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overhead Electric Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overhead Electric Service (Short Segment)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Low Pressure Steam Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Public Water Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Public Water Structure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetlands Watercourse

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Flag - Wetlands Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zoning Delineation Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brush Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"-10" FIR'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetlands Hatch

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building Hatch/Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Adjacent Building/Land Owner

AutoCAD SHX Text
Traffic Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Pole Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text
Stairs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Athletic Field

AutoCAD SHX Text
Light

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Road Name

AutoCAD SHX Text
Traffic Structures

AutoCAD SHX Text
Culvert Structure

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unknown Utility (Overhead)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text
Storm Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
Building Overhang

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chilled Water Return

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chilled Water Supply

AutoCAD SHX Text
Steam Condesate

AutoCAD SHX Text
Paint Markings

AutoCAD SHX Text
Electric text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Public Water Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATV Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATV TEXT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Vegetated Wetlands Limit

AutoCAD SHX Text
100-foot Buffer Zone

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer Underground

AutoCAD SHX Text
Treeline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Telephone (Tel-Com)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Telephone (Tel-Data)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
Telephone Text

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS LINETYPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Top of Bank / OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mean Annual High Water (MAHW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Land Subject to Flooding (BLSF, ILSF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Local Resource Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
Local Buffer Zone/Set Back - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Local Buffer Zone/Set Back - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
200-foot Riverfront Area

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Telephone Structure

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gas Line (short segment)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Electric (short segment)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Public (short segment)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sanitary Sewer (Short Segment)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Water Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-ABAN-UTIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-DEMO-UTIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
"LINE-EXIST"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTECH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hot Water Return

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hot Water Supply

AutoCAD SHX Text
Medium Pressure Steam Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
High Pressure Steam Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-WLBZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-RFTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erosion & Sediment Controls

AutoCAD SHX Text
Coffer Dam

AutoCAD SHX Text
Turbidity Curtain / Silt Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-BUFZ-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-BUFZ-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-LCRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-WLMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-TBNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-MAHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
V-ENVR-FLZN

AutoCAD SHX Text
*Width of line in Paper Space.  To determine the thickness the line should be drawn in Model Space MULTIPLY width shown by drawing's scale to get thickness in model space, e.g. 40 scale dwg, Buffer Zone is 2 in Model Space.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(*0.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(*0.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(*0.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(*0.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(*0.0375)

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Primary Electric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Secondary Electric

AutoCAD SHX Text
Survey Benchmark

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG. NAIL ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( Deciduous )

AutoCAD SHX Text
( Evergreen )

AutoCAD SHX Text
( Ornamental )

AutoCAD SHX Text
( Shrub )

AutoCAD SHX Text
Train Tracks

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASS (MASSDOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Property Line  (MA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Right-Of-Way

AutoCAD SHX Text
Property Line Common

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONN (CTDOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE FEATURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
COASTAL WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Coastal - Mean High Tide Coastal - Mean Low Tide Coastal - Coastal Beach Coastal - Top Of Bank Coastal - Rocky Intertidal Shore Coastal - Salt Marsh Coastal - Land Subject to Coastal Storm Flowage

AutoCAD SHX Text
COASTAL MA

AutoCAD SHX Text
COASTAL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Coastal - Coastal Boundary Line Coastal - Coastal Jurisdiction Line/High Tide Line Coastal - Tidal Wetland

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground Storage Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text
Unknown Utility (Underground)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mailbox

AutoCAD SHX Text
Masonry Mailbox

AutoCAD SHX Text
"LINE-EXIST"

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN IS ACCEPTABLE TO MASSDOT FOR CONTRACTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
  DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE BRIDGE ENGINEER             

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDER BROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
END FULL DEPTH RECONSTRUCTION SAWCUT AND MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
R&R MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DI INSULATED WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HMA CURB  (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' HMA WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+25 BEGIN MILL AND OVERLAY SAWCUT AND MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+50 BEGIN FULL DEPTH RECONSTRUCTION END MILL AND OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 2+25 BEGIN MILL AND OVERLAY SAWCUT AND MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 2+00 END FULL DEPTH RECONSTRUCTION BEGIN MILL AND OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO BRIDGE RAIL (TYP OF 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANGENT END SECTION (TYP OF 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDER BROOK CONSTRUCTION BASELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R&R SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
R&R BOULDERS (TYP OF 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION CONTROL BARRIER (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY COFFER DAM (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT OVERHEAD UTILITES (BO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYES ROAD CONSTRUCTION BASELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100-FOOT BUFFER ZONE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
200-FOOT RIVERFRONT AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT RELOCATED UP (BO) TO BE INSTALLED BETWEEN PHASING STAGE 1 AND STAGE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORDERING LAND SUBJECT TO FLOODING (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 100+89 TO STA 102+32 STREAMBED RESTORATION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+00 N: 3038366.93 E: 517772.0766

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 2+50 N: 3038548.66 E: 517942.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1. ALL OF THE PROPOSED WORK IN UPLANDS IS LOCATED WITHIN THE ALL OF THE PROPOSED WORK IN UPLANDS IS LOCATED WITHIN THE 100-FOOT BUFFER ZONE AND THE 200-FOOT RIVERFRONT AREA. 2. REFER TO SHEETS 12 AND 13 FOR POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION REFER TO SHEETS 12 AND 13 FOR POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION PHASING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODIFIED ROCKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP FOR SCOUR PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAMBED RESTORATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RET UP



10740



10740



10740



10740



10740



10737



10737



10737



10737



10737



10737



10737




